
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

You are requested to attend a meeting of 
the Licensing Regulatory Committee

on Tuesday, 12 June 2018, at 10.05 a.m., or on the rising of the
Licensing Committee meeting, whichever is the later,

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal

Please note that essential Licensing training for councillors will be held on 
the rising of this meeting.

Committee Membership

Councillors
James Airey

Rupert Audland
Pat Bell

Alvin Finch
Gill Gardner (Vice-Chairman)

Tom Harvey
Hazel Hodgson
John Holmes
Kevin Holmes
Helen Irving
Dave Khan

Helen Ladhams (Chairman)
Jon Owen

Doug Rathbone
David Webster

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.

Friday, 1 June 2018

Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:- 
Committee Administrator: Committee Services
Telephone: 01539 733333
e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I 

1 APOLOGIES 

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2 MINUTES 5 - 6

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 7 November 2017 (copy attached).

3 MINUTES OF LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEES 7 - 28

To receive the minutes of the meetings of Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committees held on 30 October and 20 November 2017 and 19 February, 
5 March (two meetings), 10 April and 24 April 2018 (copies attached) and for the 
Chairmen of the appropriate Sub-Committees to sign, as correct records.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests.

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public.

6 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing 
the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.

(1) Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received 
from members of the public.

(2) Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public.

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7 TERMS OF REFERENCE 29 - 30

To note the Terms of Reference for the Licensing Regulatory Committee.

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this part of the agenda.



This page is intentionally left blank



5
07.11.2017 Licensing Regulatory Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held in 
the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Tuesday,                  
7 November 2017, at 2.24 p.m.

Present

Councillors

 Sheila Eccles (Chairman)
Gill Gardner (Vice-Chairman)

James Airey
Rupert Audland

John Clough
Tom Harvey

John Holmes
Mel Mackie

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Nick Cotton, Alvin Finch, Helen 
Irving and Andrew Jarvis.

Officers

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor
Paul Rogers Assistant Committee Services Officer

LR/14 MINUTES 

RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 22 August 2017.

LR/15 MINUTES OF LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEES 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-
Committees held on 23 August 2017 and 18 September 2017 be received and the 
Chairmen of the relevant Sub-Committees be authorised to sign, as correct records.

LR/16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LR/17 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.

LR/18 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or 
petitions have been received in respect of this meeting.

Page 5

Item No.2



6
07.11.2017 Licensing Regulatory Committee

LR/19 REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 2018/2019 AND DRAFT BUDGET 

The Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer presented details of the review of 
Licensing Fees and Charges for 2017/18 and the draft budget for the service area.

RESOLVED – That

(1) the fees and charges for the financial year 2018/19 as set out in Appendix 1 
(Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2018/2019 ) to the report be approved; and

(2) the following be noted:-

(a) the nationally-set fees and charges as set out in Appendix 2 (Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005); and

(b) the latest draft budget estimates including the fees and charges for 2018/19 as 
set out at Appendix 1 to the report, prior to their submission to Council for approval as 
part of the final budget report.

LR/20 PROTOCOL ON GOOD PRACTICE IN LICENSING FOR MEMBERS 

The Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer presented a report which requested 
Members to consider adopting a Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing which 
accorded with legislation and best practice. The Protocol would be subject to further 
review in the light of any update in legislation and best practice.

RESOLVED – That

(1) the contents of the report be noted; and

(2) full Council be recommended to approve the draft Protocol on Good Practice in 
Licensing as set out in Appendix 1 to the report.

The meeting ended at 2.26 p.m.

Page 6



11
30.10.2017 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Monday, 30 October 
2017, at 10.00 a.m.

Present

Councillors 

Alvin Finch John Holmes Mel Mackie

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Helen Irving.

Officers

Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor
Tony Houlihan Licensing Officer
Paul Rogers Assistant Committee Services Officer

LRS/33 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Alvin Finch be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/34 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

Councillor Helen Irving having tendered an apology for absence, Councillor Mel Mackie, 
as substitute Member, took her place on the Sub-Committee.

LRS/35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/36 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of press and public.

LRS/37 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/38 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public, with the exception of the applicant and their prospective employer, be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A 
of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated.

Page 7

Item No.3



12
30.10.2017 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/39 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE - 
DS06 17/18

- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.

The Licensing Officer presented a report asking Members to consider an application for 
the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

The applicant presented their case and the prospective employer spoke on behalf of the 
applicant.

The applicant answered questions from the Sub-Committee.

The applicant summed up their case.

Note – the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant and their prospective employer, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor and the Assistant Committee 
Services Officer, then withdrew to consider the circumstances put forward and 
subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision.

Having heard the facts of the case and having heard the representations made by the 
applicant and by their prospective employer, the Sub-Committee considered the 
circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED – That the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence and that they be granted the licence for a 12 month period.

The meeting ended at 10.17 a.m.

Page 8



13
20.11.2017 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Monday,
20 November 2017, at 2.00 p.m.

Present

Councillors
 

Tom Harvey Helen Irving Mel Mackie

Officers

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer
Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor

LRS/40 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Tom Harvey be elected as Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/41 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the
Sub-Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary.

LRS/42 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 

LRS/43 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public.

LRS/44 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/45 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public, with the exception of the applicant, be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph 
indicated.

Page 9



14
20.11.2017 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/46 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE - 
DS07 17/18

- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.

The Licensing Officer presented a report asking Members to consider an application for 
the renewal of a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

The Licensing Officer answered questions from the Sub-Committee.

The applicant presented their case and answered questions from the Licensing Officer 
and the Sub-Committee making a closing statement. 

Note – the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant, in making its decision, pursuant to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:- 

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision. 

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by the 
applicant, the Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED – That the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence and that their licence shall be renewed for a 12 month period.

The meeting ended at 2.36 p.m.

Page 10



15
19.02.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Monday, 19 February 
2018, at 11.30 a.m.

Present

Councillors

Sheila Eccles Clare Feeney-Johnson Andrew Jarvis

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mel Mackie.

Officers

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer
Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor

LRS/47 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Andrew Jarvis be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/48 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

Councillor Mel Mackie having tendered an apology for absence, Councillor
Clare Feeney-Johnson, as substitute Member, took his place on the Sub-Committee.

LRS/49 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/50 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public.

LRS/51 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/52 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated.

Page 11



16
19.02.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/53 APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE 
DS08 2017/18

- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.

The Licensing Officer presented a report asking Members to consider whether to grant an 
application for the renewal of a Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence.

The applicant presented their case, provided additional documents in support of their 
application and answered a question raised by a Member.  The applicant’s employer 
spoke in support.

Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant and their employer, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision.

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by the 
applicant, the Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED – That the application for renewal of a hackney carriage driver’s licence be 
refused on the grounds that:-

(1)          The Council has a duty to protect the public, and to be satisfied that drivers are fit 
and proper persons.

The applicant was convicted and sentenced at Crown Court in Autumn 2017 for an 
offence of theft whilst in a position of trust, as detailed within the report.  The 
applicant was sentenced to a 12 month prison sentence suspended for two years.

Appendix H of the Council’s Policy states: 
               
All convictions shall be considered on merit, having regard to paragraph 4.12 of 
Section 4 and will be weighed against the need to protect the public. 

Dishonesty

Hackney carriage and private hire vehicle drivers are expected to be persons of 
trust. The widespread practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative 
of the trust that business people place in drivers. Moreover, it is comparatively 
easy for a dishonest driver to defraud the public by demanding more than the legal 
fare, etc. Foreign visitors can be confused by the change in currency and become 
“fair game” for an unscrupulous driver. 

For these reasons a serious view will be taken of any conviction involving 
dishonesty. Normally, a period of three to five years free of conviction will be 
required before entertaining an application.

Page 12



17
19.02.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

(2)          Having taken into account all the information currently available to it, including 
the supporting information provided by the applicant at the meeting, the Licensing 
Regulatory Sub-Committee decided that the application for renewal of a hackney carriage 
driver’s licence shall be refused having regard to the Council’s Policy referred to above 
and taking into account the individual circumstances of this case.

(3)          The Sub-Committee considered that, given that the applicant was sentenced 
very recently and that they have not yet completed their rehabilitative steps, they are not 
at this present moment in time a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage driver’s 
licence.

Note - The applicant was informed of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days following notification of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee’s decision.

The meeting ended at 12.16 p.m.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



19
05.03.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber - South Lakeland House, on Monday, 5 March 2018, at 
10.00 a.m.

Present

Councillors 

Alvin Finch John Holmes Helen Irving

Officers

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer
Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor
Fiona Inston Public Protection Manager

LRS/54 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor John Holmes be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/55 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary.

LRS/56 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/57 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.

LRS/58 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/59 APPLICATION TO LICENSE A HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE CONTRARY TO 
INTENDED USE POLICY DS09 17/18 

The Licensing Officer presented a report which requested consideration of an application 
from hackney carriage proprietor, Mr Abdul Rehman, to substitute his current hackney 
carriage vehicle licence with a new vehicle. The applicant had stated on his application 
that he intended to work outside of the administrative area of South Lakeland District 
Council. If granted, the Council would be required, in this instance, to dispense with the 
current Intended Use and Licensing of its Hackney Carriages Policy.

Page 15



20
05.03.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

In response to a question from Mr Rehman, the Licensing Officer confirmed that Mr 
Rehman had surrendered his hackney vehicle licence plates and that they had not been 
revoked by South Lakeland District Council.

In response to a question from a Member the Licensing Officer confirmed that the 
Intended Use and Licensing of Hackney Carriages Policy came into effect in 2017.

Mr Rehman presented his case and informed the Sub-Committee that he had held a 
licence for six years and been unaware of the new policy and that there were a number of 
other drivers who worked outside of the area.

In response to questions from the Licensing Officer and members of the Sub-Committee, 
Mr Rehman confirmed that he worked full-time in Manchester and had never worked in 
the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council. However, since surrendering 
his plates he had not been working. He also confirmed that he had applied for a hackney 
vehicle licence in Manchester six months ago but that there was a long waiting list.

Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision. 

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by the 
applicant, the Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED – That Mr Rehman’s application for a hackney carriage vehicle licence be 
refused on the following grounds:-

(1) On 30th January 2018 Mr Rehman made application for a Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licence. In the application Mr Rehman proposed to surrender his current Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle Licence for HCV786 and substitute it with a new vehicle. Mr Rehman is 
the current proprietor of HCV786, a Peugeot Expert bearing the registration KN59 XOY. 
He seeks to replace this vehicle with a Volkswagen Transporter, registration GL15TFZ 
and maintain the same Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence number. 

Mr Rehman has stated that he intends to work for a business based in Manchester and 
his application therefore falls outside of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy 2017.  This has implications from an enforcement perspective as this Licensing 
Authority cannot effectively ensure Mr Rehman adheres to the Terms and Conditions 
attached to his Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence. Furthermore, Licensing Officers 
covering other areas outside the geographic boundaries of this District would not have any 
power to take enforcement action in respect of Mr Rehman’s hackney carriage licence 
conditions. Ultimately, this situation undermines licensing processes that are in place to 
ensure the safety of the public; and  

(2) The Policy of the Council on the Intended Use and Licensing of Hackney 
Carriages states at Appendix X (Appendix B to the report)

Page 16



21
05.03.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

1.1 The Licensing Authority wishes to ensure that applications for the grant of 
hackney carriage licences are determined in accordance with the guidance given 
by the High Court in its judgment, and the declaration made in the case of 
Newcastle City Council v Berwick upon Tweed Council [2008].   

5.1 Applicants seeking the grant of hackney carriage licence for a vehicle intended 
to replace another licensed vehicle will be asked to inform the council of their 
intended use of the vehicle. There will be a presumption that applicants who no 
longer intend to ply for hire to a material extent within the administrative area of 
South Lakeland District Council will not have the new hackney carriage licence 
granted. Even where the applicant intends to ply for hire to a material extent in the 
administrative area of South Lakeland, if the intention is to trade in another 
authority’s area also for a substantial amount of time (and it appears that the 
purpose of the legislation and public safety will be frustrated) then, subject to the 
merits of the particular case, there will be a presumption that the application will be 
refused.

Note - The applicant was informed of his right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 
days following notification of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee’s decision.

The meeting ended at 10.54 a.m.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



23
05.03.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber - South Lakeland House, on Monday, 5 March 2018, at 
10.58 a.m.

Present

Councillors 

Alvin Finch John Holmes Helen Irving

Officers

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer
Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor
Tony Houlihan Licensing Officer
Fiona Inston Public Protection Manager

LRS/60 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor John Holmes be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/61 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the
Sub-Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary.

LRS/62 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/63 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public.

LRS/64 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/65 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated.

Page 19



24
05.03.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/66 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF HACKNEY AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' 
LICENCES - DS10 17/18

- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

The Licensing Officer presented a report which requested consideration of an application 
for the renewal of a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence. 

The applicant presented their case, provided additional documents in support of their 
application and answered questions raised by Members. The applicant’s employer spoke 
in support. 

Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision. 

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by the 
applicant and by the applicant’s employer, and having considered the employer’s ongoing 
support for the applicant and all the personal references provided, the Sub-Committee 
considered the circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED – That the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold both a Hackney 
Carriage and a Private Hire Driver’s Licence and be granted the renewal of both licences 
for a 12 month period.

The meeting ended at 11.52 a.m.

Page 20



25
10.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Tuesday, 10 April 
2018, at 2.30 p.m.

Present

Councillors 
 

Clare Feeney-Johnson Helen Irving Andrew Jarvis

Officers

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer
Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer
Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer
Nicola Hartley Solicitor
Karen Partington Licensing Officer

LRS/67 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Helen Irving be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/68 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary.

LRS/69 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/70 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public.

LRS/71 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting.

LRS/72 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated.

Page 21



26
10.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/73 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVING LICENCES - FIT AND PROPER 
PERSON TEST (DS11 17/18)

- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual. 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

The Licensing Officer presented a report asking Members to determine whether the 
Licence Holder was a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage and a Private Hire 
Vehicle Driver’s Licence in light of their recent convictions.

The Solicitor drew attention to a typographical error contained within the report.

The Licensing Officer answered questions raised by Members and the Licence Holder’s 
employer.

The Licence Holder presented their case.

The Licence Holder answered questions raised by Members.

The Licence Holder’s employer summed up the Licence Holder’s case.

The Solicitor informed the Sub-Committee that the Licence Holder’s employer had 
submitted a number of references shortly before the meeting.  Her legal advice was that 
only two of the references were suitable for consideration.  Members were of the opinion 
that the references had been received too late, however, chose to consider the two 
references deemed to be appropriate by the Solicitor.

Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
Licence Holder and their employer, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision.

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by the 
Licence Holder, the Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put forward and

RESOLVED –That the Licence Holder’s hackney carriage and private hire driver’s licence 
be revoked on the grounds that:-

(1) The Council has a duty to protect the public, and to be satisfied that drivers are fit 
and proper persons.

The Licence Holder was convicted and sentenced at the Magistrates’ Court in 
Spring 2018 for an offence of common assault and is also the subject of a 
restraining order, as detailed within the report.

Page 22



27
10.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

(2) Also in Winter 2017, the Licence Holder accepted an adult simple caution as 
outlined in Appendix C to the report.  As a consequence of this and a further issue (also 
detailed within the report), the Licence Holder received a warning from the Licensing 
Department with respect to their future conduct and was advised of the standards 
expected of licensed hackney carriage and private hire drivers operating within the 
controlled district of South Lakeland. 

(3) Appendix H of the Council’s policy and guidance on Taxi and Private Hire 
licensing, deals with the relevance of cautions and convictions and states:- 

Formal cautions and endorsable fixed penalties shall be treated as though they 
were convictions.  

Paragraph 5.0 of this section of the policy relates to violence and abusive 
behaviour.  It states as follows:–

5.1 As Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle drivers maintain 
close contact with the public, a firm line will be taken with applicants who 
have convictions for violent or abusive offences. This category includes 
public order offences and criminal damage.

5.2 At least five years free of such convictions will normally be 
necessary before an application is entertained and even then a strict 
warning as to future conduct will be given.

(4) The Sub Committee considered the nature of the offences were sufficiently 
serious, and concluded that the Licence Holder is not a fit and proper person to hold a 
hackney carriage and a private hire driver’s licence.

Note - The applicant was informed of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days following notification of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee’s decision.

The meeting ended at 3.40 p.m.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



29
24.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LICENSING REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee held 
in the Georgian Room - Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 24 April 2018, at 2.00 p.m.

Present

Councillors

Rupert Audland Andrew Jarvis Mel Mackie

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Helen Irving.

Officers

Jason Habbershon Committee Services/Scrutiny Officer
Nicola Hartley Solicitor
Karen Partington Licensing Officer

LRS/74 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Andrew Jarvis be elected Chairman for the meeting.

LRS/75 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP 

Councillor Helen Irving having tendered an apology for absence, Councillor
Rupert Audland, as Substitute Member, took her place on the Sub-Committee.

LRS/76 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LRS/77 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda.

LRS/78 INTRODUCTIONS 

Note – As the applicant, Mr Ateeq Ur Rehman, was not yet present, the Sub-
Committee voted to adjourn the meeting until 2.10 p.m. to provide an opportunity 
for him to arrive. Mr Rehman was not present at the time of the reconvening.

Having sought reassurance from the Licensing Officer that every effort had been made to 
facilitate the attendance of Mr Rehman, Members felt that it was appropriate in the 
circumstances to continue the meeting in his absence.

The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting.

Page 25



30
24.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

LRS/79 APPLICATION TO LICENSE HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE CONTRARY TO 
INTENDED USE POLICY (DS12 17/18) 

The Licensing Officer presented a report which requested consideration of an application 
from Mr Ateeq Ur Rehman for the renewal of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence HCV682. 

The applicant had stated that he intended to work outside of the administrative area of 
South Lakeland District Council and, as such, the application was not in line with 
Appendix X, “Intended use and licensing of hackney carriages”, of the Council’s Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2017. The Licensing Officer explained that this 
had implications from an enforcement perspective as the Council could not effectively 
ensure that the applicant adhered to the Terms and Conditions attached to his Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle Licence. Furthermore, Licensing Officers covering areas outside the 
geographic boundaries of South Lakeland would have no power to take enforcement 
action in respect of South Lakeland District Council’s hackney carriage licence conditions.

The Licensing Officer set out the legal implications relating to this case.

Note – At 2.20 p.m. the applicant, Mr Ateeq Ur Rehman, arrived.

Following the arrival of the applicant, the Chairman made introductions and read out the 
procedure for the meeting. The Licensing Officer repeated her presentation of the report 
and outlined the history of applications involving the applicant as set out within the report.

Mr Rehman explained that he had been driving under licence from South Lakeland District 
Council since 2013 and had always indicated within his applications that he would be 
working outside of South Lakeland and that this had never been raised as an issue 
before. He added that in those five years as a hackney carriage driver he had received no 
complaints. 

In reference to the lack of a response to questions regarding the trade name, address and 
telephone number of the business that the vehicle would be operating under, Mr Rehman 
explained that this was not applicable and he had been unsure if this needed including. 
He reiterated that during previous applications he had not been made aware that he was 
required to work within the area. Mr Rehman added that he had not been late in 
submitting his insurance documents but that, in his opinion, this had been the result of an 
administrative error by the Council.

The Sub-Committee asked Mr Rehman why he had chosen to apply for a licence with 
South Lakeland District Council when he operated in West Yorkshire. He explained that 
he had originally intended to move to the area, and had no issue with working within 
South Lakeland if required.

In response to a further question, Mr Rehman indicated that he understood why the 
Council’s policy was in place but reiterated that had he been made aware of the policy 
during the process of his application in 2017 then he would have been happy to work 
within South Lakeland.

Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant, in making its decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-

Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

Page 26



31
24.04.2018 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee, supported by the Solicitor, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward and subsequently reconvened to deliver the decision.

Having heard the facts of the case, and having heard the representations made by
Mr Rehman, the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee considered the circumstances put 
forward and

RESOLVED - That Mr Rehman’s application for renewal of his Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Licence be refused on the following grounds:-

(1) An application has been made by Mr Ateeq Ur Rehman to renew his Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle licence HCV682, Skoda Octavia registration SJ61 VNH. The application 
highlights that the applicant intends to work for a business based in the West Yorkshire 
area, and the application therefore falls outside of the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy 2017. 

(2) The Sub-Committee notes that the applicant has been operating outside the 
District in contravention of the Council’s Policy.

(3) The Sub-Committee was not convinced that the applicant would restrict business 
to the South Lakeland area.

(4) This has implications from an enforcement perspective as this Licensing Authority 
cannot effectively ensure the applicant adheres to the Terms and Conditions attached to 
his Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence. Furthermore, Licensing Officers covering other 
areas outside the geographic boundaries of this district would not have any power to take 
enforcement action in respect of South Lakeland District Council’s hackney carriage 
licence conditions. Ultimately, this situation undermines licensing processes that are in 
place to ensure the safety of the public.

(5) Section 6.3 of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2017 refers 
to ‘Out of District Use’, as follows;

Hackney Carriages that are licensed by South Lakeland District Council are 
expected to operate only within the district that is covered by the council.
The Council will consider revoking the licence of any hackney carriage that 
regularly operates outside of the district. In this case ‘regularly’ includes:
a) Working for a taxi company that is not based in the district, or
b) Working for a private hire operator that is not licensed by this council, or
c) Has come to the attention of the Council by way of complaint, or
d) Any other information that the hackney carriage is operating outside of the 
district on a regular basis.

(6) The Policy of the Council on the Intended use and licensing of hackney carriages 
states at Appendix X;

The Licensing Authority wishes to ensure that applications for the grant of hackney 
carriage licences are determined in accordance with the guidance given by the 
High Court in its judgement, and the declaration made in the case of Newcastle 
City Council v Berwick upon Tweed Council (2008)

Note – The applicant was informed of his right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days following notification of the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committees decision.

The meeting ended at 3.00 p.m.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2018) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE

PART 3 – 2. Responsibility for Council Functions

Committee and 
Membership

Functions Delegation of 
Functions

Taxi, gaming, entertainment, and miscellaneous 
licensing functions exercisable by a District 
Council relating to licensing and registration as set 
out in Part (b) Schedule 1 of the Functions 
Regulations.

Onward delegation to 
officers as detailed in 
Section 3 to this Part of 
the Constitution

The functions of imposing any condition, limitation 
or other restriction on an approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration granted, which 
is the responsibility of the Committee, and to 
determine any other terms to which such approval, 
consent, licence, permission or registration is 
subject.

Onward delegation to a 
three member Sub-
Committee of Licensing 
Regulatory Committee 
and to officers as set 
out in Section 3 to this 
Part of the Constitution.

The function of determining whether, and in what 
manner, to enforce any failure to comply with an 
approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration which is the responsibility of the 
Committee, or any condition.

Onward delegation to a 
three member Sub-
Committee of Licensing 
Regulatory Committee 
and to officers as set 
out in Section 3 to this 
Part of the Constitution.

The function to amend, vary, modify or revoke any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration which is the responsibility of the 
Committee, or any condition, limitation or term 
thereof.

Onward delegation to a 
three member Sub-
Committee of Licensing 
Regulatory Committee 
and to officers as set 
out in Section 3 to this 
Part of the Constitution.

Health and Safety
Functions relating to health and safety under any 
relevant statutory provision within the meaning of 
Part 1 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, 
to the extent that those functions are discharged 
otherwise than in the Council’s capacity as 
employer

Onward delegation to 
officers as detailed in 
Section 3 to this Part of 
the Constitution.

Other Functions
Power to close food businesses.

Onward delegation to 
officers as detailed in 
Section 3 to this Part of 
the Constitution.  

In respect of all the functions listed in Parts B & C 
of Schedule 1 of the Functions Regulations to hear 
and determine any matter where an applicant for a 
licence or permit or an existing licence/permit 
holder has a right to appear before and be heard 
by the Committee

Onward delegation to a 
three member Sub-
Committee of Licensing 
Regulatory Committee

To determine whether a complaint or 
representation is irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious, 
etc

Onward delegation to 
officers as detailed in 
Section 3 to this Part of 
the Constitution

2 
(1)

Licensing 
Regulatory 
Committee

15 members of the 
Council

To determine applications for permits for more 
than four gaming machines in premises licensed 
under the Licensing Act 2003

Page 29

Item No.7



SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2018) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE

Committee and 
Membership

Functions Delegation of 
Functions

Functions under Part 8 of the Gambling Act 2005 Onward delegation to a 
three-Member Sub-
Committee established 
under the provisions set 
out in the Gambling Act 
2005 and to Officers as 
set out in the Council’s 
Statement of Gambling 
Licensing Policy

The responsibility for setting of the licence fees 
under Section 212 of the Gambling Act 2005
Consideration of new applications under Section 
34 of the Gaming Act 1968 which, if granted, 
would result in there being more than two 
machines per premises

Consideration of new applications under Section 
16 of the Lotteries and Amusements Act 1976

Consideration of applications under Section 6 of 
the Gaming Act 1968

Onward delegation to a 
three member Sub-
Committee established 
under the provisions set 
out in the 2003 Act.

Power to make an order identifying a place as a 
designated public place for the purposes of police 
powers in relation to alcohol consumption (Section 
13(2) of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001.
Power to determine Sexual Entertainment policy, 
fees, terms and conditions made under Schedule 
3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982.

This function is not 
subject to onward 
delegation.

Power to determine applications grant, renewal, 
transfer or variation of Sexual Entertainment 
licences made under Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

Onward delegation to a 
three Member Sub-
Committee of Licensing 
Regulatory Committee 
and to officers as set 
out in Section 3 to this 
Part of the Constitution.

Page 30


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committees
	40-46 20-11-17 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee minutes
	47-53 19-02-17 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee minutes
	54-59 05-03-18 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee minutes
	60-66 05-03-18 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee minutes
	67-73 10-04-18 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee Minutes
	74-79 24-04-18 Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee Minutes

	7 Terms of Reference

